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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Enerjisa Elektrik Dagitm A.S.
Report on the Audit of the Counsolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Enerjisa Elektrik Dagitim A.S. (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statcments present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial positions of the Group as at 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics
Jor Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the JESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Deloitte; ingiltere mevzuating gore kurulmus olan Deloitte Touche Tehmatsu Limited ("DTTLY) sirketini, {iye firma agindaki sirketlerden ve iliskili tozel lasilikierden bir
veya birden fazlasini ifade etmekiedir. DTTL ve Gye firmalarinin her biri ayri ve bagimsiz birer tuze! kisifitir. DTTL ("Delcitte Globat" olarak da anilmaktadi) misterilere
hizmet sunmamaktadir. Global Gye firma agimizla dgili daha fazla bilgi almak igin www deloitte.com/about adresini ziyaret ediniz.

© 2016. Daha fazla bilgi igin Deloitte Tirkiye (Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited Uye sirketi) ile iletisime geginiz.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance .for the .Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the comsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to lignidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or exror, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont’d)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

PRT BACWASIL DENETIM YE SMM A.S,

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECI MALI MUSAVIRLIK A.S.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

Ankara, 26 July 2017
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira {TL} unless otherwise stated,)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables

Due from related parties

Due from third parties
Other Receivables

Due fiom related parties

Due from third parties
Derivative Financial Instruments
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Assets Related with Current Taxes
Other Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Other Receivables

Due from third parties
Financial Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Prepaid Expenses
Deferred Tax Assets
Other Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Current Period
31 December

Prior Period
31 December

Prior Period
31 December

Notes 2016 2015 2014
2,939,550 2,532,462 2,241,969

25 74,570 152,103 112,669
9 653,754 455,975 312,870
5 1,720,529 1,545,331 1,471,367
4 15,801 6124 17,185
1,704,728 1,539,207 1,454,182

6 393,471 272,263 217,707
4 2 67 -
393,469 272,196 217,707

3,886 - -

7 74,459 63,471 55,201
8 14,156 13,412 12,041
22 238 5,980 20,322
15 4,487 23,927 39,792
12,191,898 11,488,597 10,521,490

6 230,735 382,182 302,476
230,735 382,182 302,476

9 3,639,552 2,565,064 1,469,322
10 58,010 30,850 128
il 7,891,350 8,072,256 8,281,023

2,730,031 2,730,031 2,730,031

5,161,319 5,342,225 5,550,992

8 1,516 1,876 4,140
22 247,703 278,930 348,069
15 123,032 157,439 116,332
15,131,448 14,021,059 12,763,459

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial staternents.
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Short-Term Financial Liabilities

Short-Term Portion of Long Term Financial

Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables
Due to related parties
Due to third parties
Payables for Employee Benefits
Other Payables
Duie to third parties
Payables to Privatization Administration
Deferred Income
Income Tax Liahility
Short-Term Provisions
Provisions for employment benefits
Other short-term provisions
Other Short-Term Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Long-Term Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Payables
Due to third parties
Payables to Privatization Administration
Deferred Income
Long-Term Provisions
Provisions for Employment Benefits
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Equity
Paid-in Capital
Other Funds

Accumulated other comprehensive income or
expenses that will not be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss
Accumulated gain/loss on
remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Restricted Profit Reserves

Retained Earnings and Accumulated Losses

Profit for the Period
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Period Prior Period Prior Period

31 December 31 December 31 December

Notes 2016 2015 2014
4,950,759 4,580,790 3,294,155
23 1,556,770 915,335 762,210
23 1,541,024 1,000,729 43,161
23 25,087 20,630 17,185
5 1,117,668 826,990 816,488
4 126,061 129,999 63,252
991,607 696,991 733,236
14 39,230 15,539 21,366
6 160,238 117,718 36,517
160,238 117,718 36,517
6 - 1,188,456 1,237,732
8 165,733 173,289 75,161
22 6,316 8,875 -
167,879 167,334 163,689
14 29,462 22,114 19,142
12 138,417 145,220 144,547
15 170,814 145,895 120,646
5,433,861 5,074,438 5,428,962
23 3,200,000 2,878,000 2,098,000
23 245,134 232,392 239,728
6 880,004 735,201 608,063
880,004 735,201 608,063
6 - - 1,176,074
g 25,617 101,624 158,385
56,442 58,823 38,5355
14 56,442 58,825 38,555
22 1,026,664 1,068,396 1,110,157
4,746,828 4,365,831 4,040,342
16 3,964,328 4,389,585 4,389,585
4,340 4,340 4,340
(7,209) (10,813) “
(7,209) (10.813) -
16 139,190 53,303 53,303

268,586 (406,886) (130,172)

377,393 336,302 (276,714)
15,131,448 14,021,059 12,763,459

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ENERJISA ELEXTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Furkish Lira (TL}) unless otherwise stated.)

Current Period Prior Period Prior Period
1 January- 1 January- 1 January-
Notes 31 December 2016 3 December 2015 31 December 2014

Sales Revenue {net) 17 9,103,380 9,153,614 8,064,421
Cost of Sales (-} i8 (6,500,956) (7,108,120} (6,753,511)
Gross Profit 2,602,424 2,045,494 1,310,919
General Administrative Expenses {-) 19 (1,227,836) (1,679,790} (967,303)
Other Income from Operating Activities 20 144,651 123,333 104,204
Other Expenses from Operating Activities (-} 20 (246,929) (50,760) (§40,174)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE

FINANCE INCOME / (EXPENSE) 1,272,310 1,038,277 307,637
Finance Income 21 39,729 31,484 68,647
Finance Expense (-) 21 {797,837) (606,854) (639,991)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 514,202 462,907 {263,707y
Tax Expense from Continuing
Operations (136,809) (126,605) (13,007)
Current Tax Expense 22 {148,215) {96,524) {51,485
Deferred Tax Income / (Expense) 22 11,406 (30,081) 38478
INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 377,393 336,302 (276,714}
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 377,393 336,302 (276,714)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (EXPENSE)

Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses that will

net be Reclassified Subsequently to Profit or Loss 3,604 (10,813) -

Gainfloss on measurement of defined benefit

obligation 14 4,505 (13,516) -
Income Tax Relating to Other Comprehensive

Income/ (Loss) ftems that will not be Reclassified

Subsegquently Profit/ (Loss) 2 (901) 2,703 -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (EXPENSE) 380,997 325,489 (276,714)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
3



SIUISIURIL]S JRTOURHI] PRIRPI[OSU0D asa1) Jo 1ed [RISOIUT UB wLo] Soj0u SuIAuRdwoose sy,

¥

‘9002

tt §YCIETL Wwoy '§ry wiigecl YUalH dusxieg Jo Buljpunqun oY1 o) SpIeSol (1AL UOHRI[IDUGIT OU) JO HOHEZIEW] it 0] onp L1inba 0 poLIgjsUTI} USdq SEE IUNOWE PAUONUIWRIONE SUL (44 )
*£inbo [e101 B POIIN00 SR 2BUBID OU puE $9550] S1e0k
snotaord Woyj paonpap Useq SBY 1UNosoe [EHdes syl “UONHOBSURI SH| JO J[NSa1 B S "O1(0F ‘PIOE JOqUILAON U0 HaYe] UCISIoap (JOO 011 YUA 1991S 9OUR[RY 51 W SoSS0|-pleauio} Areo
S} Ui JIOUOP M) 19A001 O} IOPIO Ul 2PO7) [BIISIWIOY) USIHIN, 341 JO 44 2[01MY 0f juensind uononpor [zides & oxew o) Luedwioy) oY) Jo 51019215 JO pivog] syt Aq papisop usaq set| 1] ()

8I8'IPL'Y €6ELLE 98€°807 (607'L) OFE'r 06T°6EE 875'196'
L66'08E E6L°LLE - F0O9°'E - - -
- (zotoee) TLY'SLY - - L8868 (Ls0'sTH)
1£8'S9€'y 70€'9€E {988'00r) (€rg'0D) ore'y £0£°ES S8S'68E'Y
68167 ZOL9EL - (g1gom) - - "
" FIL'OLT {rrLoLz} - - - "
wEor'y (P1L'oLD) (zLr'ogD) - ore'y £0C°ES c8c'6RE'Y
{r1L'9LT) (r1L'9LT) - - - - -
ove'y 6L8'T6 (88716} - orEY (16¢'1) -
0007006 - - - - - 000°006
SLL'TIF'E (618'76) (r88'8g) - - r68'rs SRS GRP'E
Ambj o], porad SISSO] sunpd jgouaq (o) SPURNE SOAIISDLE [ead e ur-pre,]

B IR ETITNE | PACRUNIDY pun paugap jo RO o

SSUELLITD pale)ay] JUMLIDINS LR PAANHSNT

uo ssofad
PIURUIY

$501 .10 3joad 0}
Apuanbasqns
patjissupaal

Y JOU LA JEA)
SasUME XD 10 QU0
sarsurydos
Y

poIEMUMY

OTOZ U [£ I St dURTLE

atugati salsuoyeidiuod jwjo].

() SI07SUIBAT,
ST IHAUIIIC] [€ I S12 20U eE]

atuosur salsusyRIdiiog [rje],

sIasuRly,

P LOT QI 1€ JE sk Jueieg

awoatt sAlsustpidwon e,
SIDJSUBILE,

[231deo 21v1S JO 2nss]

FLOZ Alenuup § 3u s aLgeg

(‘poluls ostALII)0 ssa]En {"LL) wIIT YSIYIN [ JO Spuesnolf) se pessadxo sae sjunoury}

F10Z MAGINADEJ 1€ ANV S107 YAGNADAA 1€ 9107 YFEWADHA 1€ QIANH SUVIA FHL Y04
ALINOA NI SEONVHD 40 INFWALYLS AALVAITOSNOD

SHI¥VIAISINS SLIANY

'SV WILED VA JMLMATE VSIFYANT



ENERJiSA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER. 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

Current Period Prior Period Prior Period
1 January- 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
Notes 2016 2015 2014
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 1,859,439 1,021,362 98,044
Profit for the period 377,393 336,302 (276,714)
Profit for the period from continued operations 377,393 336,302 (276,714)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/loss for the period 800,945 829,795 777,037
Adjustments related to the depreciation and amortization 10,11 217,938 219428 208,663
Adjustments related to the depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0 8,552 10,661 -
Adjustments related to the amortization of intangible assets 11 209,386 208,767 208,663
Adjustments related to impairment loss 5 264,351 179,111 149,668
Adjustments related to impaimment oss recognised on receivables 5 264,351 179,E11 149,668
Adjustments related to provisions 20,955 18,295 20,681
Adjustments related to provisions for employee benefits 27,802 17,622 30,796
Adjustments related to provision for employee termination benefits 20,454 14,650 24987
Adjustments related to provision for benus and
unused vacation provision 14 7,348 2,972 3,809
Adjustments related to legat case provisions (6,303) 673 {10,115)
Adjustments related to interest (income) and expenses 695,445 543,852 566,417
Adjustments related to interest income 2 (39,729) {31,484) (58,692)
Adjustments related to interest expense 31 735,174 575,336 625,109
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 2 54,114 19,837 (9,953)
Adjustments related 1o tax expense jeic) 136,809 126,605 13,007
Other adjustments to reconcile profitloss 2 (388,711) (277,333) (171,444)
Changes in operating assets and linbilities (7,081) (462,595) (664,912)
Adjustrients related 1o (increase) in trade receivables {439,549 (253,075) (248,569)
Adjustments related to (increase) / decrease in trade receivables from related parties (9,677) 11,061 (220)
Adjustments related to (increase) in trade receivables from third parties {429,872) (264,136) (248,349)
Adjustments refated to (increase) in inventories (10,988) (8,270 6,289)
Adjustments refated to dectease/ (increase) in other receivables and current assets 62,507 (437,043) (330,100)
Adjustments related to decrease / (increase) in other receivables from third parties 62,507 437,045 (330,100)
Adjustrnents related so increase in trade payables 390,678 10,502 70,739
Adjustments related to {decrease} / increase in trade payables to related parties (3,938) 66,747 24268
Adjustments related to increase / (decrease) in trade payables 10 third parties 264616 (56,2453) 46,471
Adjustments related to increase in other payables and expense accruals 90,271 225393 (£50,693)
Adjustments related to increase in other payables 1o third partics %0,271 235,203 (150,693)
Cash Generated From Operating Activities 1,171,257 703,502 (164,589
Payments for employment benefits (18,332) (7,896) (39,136)
Employee termiration benefits paid i4 (18,332) (7,896) (39,136)
Tax payments 22 {145,032) (73,307) (48,225)
Tax payments 16 {145,032) (73,307) (48,225)
Other cash in-flows 25 831,546 399,063 349,994
Cash Flows from Investing Activities (2,709,132} (2,286,473) (1,642,809
Cash used fer purchase of tangible and intangible assets 10,11 (64,192} (41,383) -
Cash used for property, plant and equipment purchases 10 {35,712} 41,383) -
Cash used for purchase of intangible assets 11 {28,480) - -
Interest received 21 39,729 31,484 38,692
Other cash out-fiows 25 (2,684,669 (2,276,374) (1,701,501)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities 772,160 1,304,545 1,316,799
Cash in-flows from borrowings 21,337,887 16,127,577 8,547,470
Loans received 21,337,887 16,127,177 8,347.470
Cash out-flows from borrowings (19,924,143) {14,416,888) (7,475,914)
Repayments of the borrewings (19,524,143) (14,416,888) (7,475,914)
Interest paid (641,584) (405,744} 634,757
Proceeds on issue of equity shares - - 900,000
(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,533 39434 (227,968)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beiinning of the period 23 152,103 112,669 340,635
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 25 74,570 152,103 112,669

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL} unless otherwise stated.)
ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

Enerjisa Elekirik Dagitim A.S. (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries will be referred as the “Group” for
consolidated financial statements. The Company is incorporated i Istanbul, Turkey on 24 October 2008.
The address of its registered office is Sabanci Center, 4. Levent, Besiktas. As of 31 December 2016 total
employees of the Group are 8,972 (31 December 2015: 8,589; 31 December 2014: 8,883).

The Company, which was a joint venture of Hact Omer Sabanci Holding A.S. (“Sabancr™ and
Osterreichische Elekfrizitatswirthcshafts-Aktiengesellschaft has officially acquired 100% of the shares of
Bagkent Elekirik Dagitim A.§. (“BEDAS™) as of 28 January 2009 by successful finalization of
privatization bid for the consideration of USD 1,225 million. BEDAS currently operates in Ankara,
Kirikkale, Kastamonu, Zonguldak, Bartin, Canlar1 and Karabiik provinces and holds the licence that gives
the right for distribution of electricity in these provinces for 30 years starting from the date of Transfer of
Operation Rights (“TOR”) agreement signed with Tiirkiye Elektrik Dagitim A.S. (“TEDAS™) on 31 March
2006. Following the privatization bid, shares of Osterreichische Elektrizitdtswirthcshafts-
Aktiengesellschaft was transferred to Verbund International GMBH (“Verbund™). Tn December 2011,
Sabanci and Verbund transferred their shares to Enerjisa Enerji A.S. which was established in December
2011 as a joint venture of Sabanct and Verbund.

On 4 December 2012, Verbund International and E.ON SE (“E.ON™) entered into a Share Purchase
Agreement for the sale and transfer of all Verbund shares in Enerjisa Enerji A.S. to E.ON and the transfer
is finalized on 24 April 2013.

The Company, has officially acquired 100% of the shares of the Istanbul Anadolu Yakas: Elektrik Dagitim
AS. (“AYEDAS™) and Enerjisa [stanbul Anadolu Yakast Elektrik Perakende Satis A.S. (¢ ‘AEPSAS™) as of
31 July 2013, and acquired 100% of the shares of the Toroslar Elekirik Dagitim A.S. (“TOROSLAR
EDAS™) and Enexjisa Toroslar Elekirik Perakende Satis A.$. (“TOROSLAR EPSAS™) as of 30 September
2013 by successful finalization of privatization bids for the consideration of USD 1,227 million and USD
1,725 million, respectively.

AYEDAS and AEPSAS currently operate in Anatolian Side of Istanbul and AYEDAS holds the licence
that gives the right for distribution of electricity in this province until 31 December 2042 starting from the
date of TOR agreement signed with TEDAS on 24 July 2006.

TOROSLAR EDAS and TOROSLAR EPSAS currently operate in Adana, Gaziantep, Hatay, Kilis, Mersin
and Osmaniye and TOROSLAR EDAS holds the licence that gives the right for distribution of electricity
in these provinces until 31 December 2042 starting from the date of TOR agreement signed with TEDAS
on 24 Tuly 2006.

In 2006, EMRA has set a unique pricing mechanism for all of the electricity distribution companies in
Turkey which will be effective for the period between 1 January 2006 and 31 December 2012 which is
called the “transition period”. In accordance with this pricing mechanism, distribution companies in
Turkey have already determined their regional tariffs for the period between 1 January 2006 and 31
December 2010 and by using these regional tariffs, EMRA has already determined the national tariffs for
the same period. In December 2010, EMRA has announced new tariff for the period between 1 January
2011 and 31 December 2016. In December 2016, EMRA has announced new tariff for the period between
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2020.
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ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP (cont’d)

As of 1 January 2013, distribution companies (BEDAS, AYEDAS and TOROSLAR EDAS) are obliged to
carry out the distribution and the retail sales activities under separate legal entities in accordance with
Electricity Market Law. After the establishment of retail companies (Enerjisa Elektrik Perakende Satis A.S.,
AEPSAS and TOROSLAR EPSAS) with the same shareholder structure, as of 31 December 2012 the
distribution companies have transferred some of their assets and liabilities to retail companies due to the legal
unbundling and the unbundling transactions have been registered as of 31 December 2012.

Further to Board of Directors resolution dated 20 April 2017, the Company has merged with its shareholding
company, Enerjisa Enerji A.§ also being the surviving entity. The merger has been registered as of 28 April
2017.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1 Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
revaluation of certain assets and liabilities being carried by their fair values.

In order to determine the historical cost, the fair values paid for assets are considered.
2.2 Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) issued by International Accounting Standards Board.

2.3 Functional Currency

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed in TL,
which is the functional currency of the Group, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than TL
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At

~each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined,
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Gains and losses arising on settlement and translation of foreign currency items are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)
BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont’d)

2.4 Comparative Information and Reclassification of Prior Period Consolidated Financial
Statements

Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared comparatively with prior period in
order to give information about financial position and performance trends. If the presentation or
classification of the financjal statements is changed, in order to maintain consistency, financial statements
of the prior periods are also reclassified in line with the related changes.

The nature, amouit and reasons for each of the reclassifications are described below:

e In 2014, the Group had presented “Financial Assets” amounting to TL 161,237 in “Non-current
Fmancial Assets”. In the current year, it has been recognized in ‘Current Financial Assets” (Note: 9).

* In 2014 the Group had presented “Provision for doubtful and other receivables” amounting to TL
74,468 in “General Administrative Expenses™, In the current year it has been reclassified under
“Other Expenses From Operating Expenses”.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies

The signficant changes that were made on accounting policies applied retrospectively and the financial
statements of preceding period are restated. No changes has been observed at the accounting policies of
the Group in the current year.

2.6 Changes and Misstatements in Accounting Estimates

If changes in accounting estimates are related to only one period, the changes are applied prospectively in
the current period in which changes are made. If changes in accounting estimates are related to future
periods, the changes are applied prospectively both in the current period in which changes are made and
also in future periods. No changes has been observed at the accounting estimates of the Group in the
current yeat.

The accounting misstatements which are identified are applied retrospectively and consolidated financial
statements of preceding period are restated. No material misstatement has been observed in order to restate
the financial statements of the Group in the current year.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.7 Basis of Consolidation

The details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014 are as follows:

Subsidiaries

Place of Proportion of ownership

incorporation interest and voting power
and operation held by the Group % Principal activity

2016 2015 2014

Bagkent Elektrik Dagitim A.S. (“BEDAS™) Ankara 100 100 100 Electricity distribution
services
Enerjisa Elektrik Perakende Satis A.S. Ankara 100 100 100 Electricity retail
(“EPS”) services
Istanbul Anadolu Yakas1 Elektrik Dagstim [stanbul 100 100 100 Electricity distribution
A3 (“AYEDAS™) services
Enerjisa Istanbul Anadolu Yakas: Elekirik Istanbul 100 100 100 Electricity retail
Perakende Satig A.S. (“AEPSAS™) services
Toroslar Elektrik Dagitim A S. Adana 100 100 100 Electricity distribution
(“TOROSLAR EDAS™ services
Enerjisa Toroslar Elektrik Perakende Satig Adana 100 100 100 Electricity retail
AS. (“TOROSLAR EPSAS™) services

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. lias power over the investee;
’ is exposed, or has rights, fo variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an invesiee are sufficient to give it power, including:
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.7 Basis of Consolidation

. the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the

current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting
patteruis at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are atiributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

10
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards

a)  Amendments to_IFRSs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements

None.

b) New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial

statements
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts '
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations *
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’
Amendments to IAS 16 and 1AS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants ’
Amendments to JAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements ’
Annual Improvements to
2012-2014 Cycle IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 19, 148 34
Amendments to [AS 1 Disclosure Initiative !

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and  [nvestment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception '
IAS 28

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2016.

I¥RS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts permits an entity, which is a first-time adopter of International
Financial Reporting Standards to continue to account, with some limited changes, for ‘regulatory deferral
account balances’ m accordance with its previous GAAP, both on initial adoption of IFRS and in
subsequent financial statements.

IFRS 14 was issued by the IASB on 30 January 2014 and is applied to an entity's first anmual IFRS
financial statements for a period beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations

This amendment requires an acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a
business to:

. apply all of the business combinations accounting principles in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs, except for
those principles that conflict with the guidance in IFRS 11,
° disclose the information required by IFRS 3 and other IFRSs for business combinations.

11
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

) New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements {cont’d)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

This amendment clarifies that that a depreciation method that is based on revenue that is generated by an
activity that includes the use of an asset is not appropriate for property, plant and equipment, and
introduces a rebuttable presumption that an amortisation method that is based on the revenue generated by
an activity that includes the use of an intangible asset is inappropriate, which can only be overcome in
limited circumstances where the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue, or when it can be
demonstrated that revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated. The amendment also adds guidance that expected future reductions in the selling price of an
item that was produced using an asset could indicate the expectation of technological or commercial
obsolescence of the asset, which, in turn, might reflect a reduction of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

This amendment include “bearer plants” within the scope of IAS 16 rather than IAS 41, allowing such
assets to be accounted for a property, plant and equipment and measured after initial recognition on a cost
or revaluation basis in accordance with TAS 16. The amendment also introduces a definition of ‘bearer
plants’ as a living plant that is used in the production or supply of agricultural produce, is expected to bear
produce for more than one period and has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce, except

for incidental scrap sales, and clarifies that produce growing on bearer plants remains within the scope of
IAS 41.

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

This amendment permits investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to be optionally
accounted for using the equity method in separate financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

IFRS 5: Adds specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in which an entity reclassifies an asset from held for
sale to held for distribution or vice versa and cases in which held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued.

IFRS 7: Additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in a
transferred asset, and clarification on offsetting disclosures in condensed interim financial statements.

IAS 19: Clarify that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be denominated in the same currency as the benefits to be paid.

IAS 34: Clarify the meaning of ‘elsewhere in the interim report’ and require a cross-reference.
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

This amendment addresses perceived impediments to preparers exercising their judgment in presenting
their financial reports.

12
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.8 New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

b) New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the consolidated financial statements

{cont’d)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

This amendment addresses issues that have arisen in the context of applying the consolidation exception
for investment entities by clarifying the following points:

c)

The exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements for an intermediate parent entity is
available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the investment entity
measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value.

A subsidiary that provides services related to the parent’s investment activities should not be
consolidated if the subsidiary itself is an investment entity.

When applying the equity method to an associate or a joint venture, a non-investment entity investor
in an investment entity may retain the fair value measurement applied by the associate or joint
venture to its interests in subsidiaries.

An investment entity measuring all of its subsidiaries at fair value provides the disclosures relating
to investment entities required by IFRS 12.

New and revised IFRSs in jssue but not vet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

Amendments to [AS 7 Disclosure butiative !

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments *

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers *

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to [FRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

IFRS 16 Leases”’

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrumenis’ with IFRS 4
Tnsurance Contracts’

I[FRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration *

Amendments to [AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property ’

Annual  Improvements to IFRS

Standards 2014-2016 Cycle IFRS 1% IFRS 127,148 287

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
* Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
? Bffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

This amendment clarifies the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its
associate or joint venture.

13
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.8 New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

¢)  New and revised IFRSs in issue but not vet effective (cont’d)

Amendments to YAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

This amendment clarifies the following aspects:

o Unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at fair value and measured at cost for tax purposes
give nise to a deductible temporary difference regardless of whether the debt instrument’s holder
expects to recover the carrying amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use.

® The carrying amount of an asset does not limit the estimation of probable future taxable profits.
Estimates for future taxable profits exclude tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deductible
temporary differences.

. An enfity assesses a deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets. Where tax law
restricts the utilization of tax losses, an entity would assess a deferred tax asset in combination with
other deferred tax assets of the same type.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

This amendment clarifies that entities shall provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in Habilities arising from financing activities.

IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments

IFRS 9, issued in November 2009, infroduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. IFRS 9 is amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 is issued in July 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers.

The five steps in the model are as follows:

. I1dentify the contract with the customer,

. Identify the performance obligations in the contract,

. Determine the transaction price,

» Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contraets,
» Recognize revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This amendment clarifies three aspects of the standard (identifying performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, and licensing) and provides some transition relief for modified contracts and
completed contracts.

14
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.8 New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

¢) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not vet effective (cont’d)

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

This amendment clarifies the standard in relation to the accounting for cash-settled share-based payment
transactions that include a performance condition, the classification of share-based payment transactions
with net settlement features, and the accounting for modifications of share-based payment transactions
from cash-settled to equity settled.

IFRS 16 Leases

This new standard brings most leases on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating the
distinction between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting however remains largely unchanged
and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 “Leases”
and related interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier
adoption permitted if IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' has also been applied.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ with IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’

This amendment provides optional approaches for entities that issue insurance contracts within the scope
of IFRS 4, and the entities are permitted to stop applying them before the new insurance standard is
applied.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where:

» there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency;

¢  the entity recognizes a prepayment asset or a deferred income liability in respect of that consideration,
in advance of the recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and

e the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-monetary.

The Interpretations Committee came to the following conclusion:

¢ The date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial
recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability.

e If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each
payment or receipt.

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property:

e  Amends paragraph 57 to state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property
when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A change of use occurs if property meets,
or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property. A change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property by itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use.

¢  The list of examples of evidence in paragraph 57(a) — (d) is now presented as a non-exhaustive list of
examples instead of the previous exhaustive list.

15
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.8 New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

¢) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not vet effective (cont’d)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

o IFRS 1: Deletes the short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3—E7 of IFRS 1, because they have now
served their intended purpose.

e IFRS 12: Clarifies the scope of the standard by specifying that the disclosure requirements in the
standard, except for those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply to an entity’s interests listed in paragraph 3
that are classified as held for sale, as held for distribution or as discontinued operations in accordance
with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

e IAS 28: Clarifies that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an investment in an
associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other
qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-
by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.

The Group evaluates the effects of these standards, amendments and improvements on the consolidated
financial statements.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business Combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognized in profit or Ioss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their
fair value, except that:

» deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement
period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39, or IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognized in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any,

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually (Note:
2.10), or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An impaimment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Related Parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements
a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

1. has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

il. has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

iil. is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

1. The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

1i. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

1ii. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
iv. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

v. The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of cither the reporting
entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

vi. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

vii.A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personne! of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Related Parties {cont’d)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and
a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Revenue Recoonition

Distribution part of the revenue is composed of distribution, meter reading services, transmission and theft
and loss components. Distribution and meter reading service components are considered within the content
of service concession arrangements due to the regulations of Energy Market Regulatory Authority
(“EMRA™). Additionally, according to the Electricity Market Law, the Electricity Market Tariffs
Communiqué and other related regulations, the Company’s distribution, transmission and meter reading
services are subject to revenue caps which cover operating expenses and investment requirements related
to distribution and meter reading services. Moreover, transmission revenue is a complete pass-through of
transmission costs as charged by TEIAS. These regulations guarantee revenue to the Group during the
transition period regardless of the consumption level. The underbillings or overbillings made by the Group
are adjusted by EMRA in the tariffs to be effective in two years.

Revenue, excluding the distribution business, is recognized upon delivery of electricity to customers or
upon fulfilment of services. Delivery is deemed complete when the risk and rewards associated with
ownership has been transferred to the buyer as contractually agreed, compensation has been contractually
established and collection of the resulting receivable is probable.

Revenue from the sale and delivery of electricity is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. The estimated value of the electricity supplied but not invoiced to the customers is
considered for the measurement of revenue.

Interest revenue

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Interest income related to service concession arrangements is recognized in accordance with Service
Concession Arrangements (“IFRIC 12”). Interest income on receivable from concession arrangement is
recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Service Concession Arrangements

Service concession arrangements are defined within scope of IFRIC 12 as those whereby a government or
other body grants contracts for the supply of public services — operations such as roads, energy
distribution, prisons or hospitals — to private operators. The Group’s electricity distribution and meter
reading service businesses are in the scope of service concession agreements,

Considering the Group’s terms in the service concession arrangements, a financial asset model where the
Group recognises a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor has been applied, since the right to
receive cash for the distribution and meter reading services are constituted through actual billing to
subscribers where the distribution and meter reading service components of the billing are already
specified or determinable through the regulated by the Energy Market Regulatory Authority (“EMRA™).

The Group has measured the financial asset at fair value, with the effective interest method which is
calculated by discounting estimated future cash receipts with regards to the compensation of TOR and the
initial and annual capital expenditures made by the Group, through the expected life of the arrangement
and presented as “Financial Asset™ on the consolidated balance sheet and recognizes the revenue on an
effective interest method as “Finance Income from Service Concession Arrangements”,

Inventories
Inventories mainly include electricity equipment and materials related to the Group’s electricity
distribution business. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of

inventories is determined on a weighted average basis. Additional costs, incurred to bring the inventories
to the intended usable condition or position, are included in determination of cost.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Land is not depreciated and carried at cost less accumulated impairment.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes, or for purposes
not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Property, Plant and Equipment {(cont’d)

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, other than frechold land and
properties under construction, less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting peried, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible Assets
Customer contracts and relations and transfer of operational rights (“TOR”)

Customer contracts and relations are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, The
useful lives of customer contracts and relations range between 25-30 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives (3-5 years).

Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Financial Leasing Transactions

Leasing - the Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortization and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. There
were no capitalized borrowing costs in 2016, 2015 and 2014.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs except
for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at
fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL)’, ‘held-to-maturity investments’, ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets and
“loans and receivables’.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period,

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
designated as at FVTPL.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.

Impairment of financial asseis

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been impacted. For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Fmancial assets (cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impatrment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of
180 days, except for irrigation and government receivables, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a irade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments which their maturities are three months or less from date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities gt Fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss where the financial liability is either
held for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Financial liabilities (cont’d)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group’s financing activities expose it primarily {o the financial risks of changes in for exchange rates
and interest rates. The Group uses derivative financial instruments (primarily foreign currency forward
confracts) to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain firm
commitments and forecasted transactions. Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date the
derivative contract and are subsequently measured at their respective fair value. If the derivative cannot
meet the requirements of hedge accounting the gain or loss relating to the fair value of the derivative is
recognized in the statement of profit/loss immediately.

The fair value of derivative instruments, are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
available, estimate is made based on discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the
duration of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derivatives. If the fair value is positive then the derivative is recognized as asset, the fair value is negative
then it is recognized as liability.

Provisions. Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Contingent liabilities are assessed continuously to determine probability of
outflow of economically beneficial assets. For contingent liabilities, when an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits are probable, provision is recognized for this contingent liability in the
period when the probability has changed, except for cases where a reliable estimate cannot be made.

When the outflow of economic benefits from the Group is probable but the amount cannot be measured
reliably, the Group discloses this fact in the notes.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
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BAGSIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
seftle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneousty.

Government Grants

The Company has obtained the investment incentive certificate from the Ministry of Economy on January
15, 2016 and utilizes VAT exemption for machinery equipment purchases from domestic suppliers in the
scope of renewal of existing investments.

Taxation and Deferred Income Taxes

Turkish tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax
return. Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements,
have been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the comprehensive income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current fax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred fax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases which is used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized.

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

25



ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira {TL) naless otherwise stated.}

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.9 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events; even if they occur after any announcement related with profit or public announcement
of other chosen financial information, covers any event between the balance sheet date and the publication
date of the balance sheet.

In the case that events requiring an adjustment to the financial statements occur subsequent to the balance
sheet date, the Group makes the necessary corrections on the financial statements.

Emplovment Benefits
Termination and retivement benefits

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or
involuntarily leaving the Group. Such payments are considered as being part of defined retirement benefit
plan as per International Accounting Standard No. 19 (revised) “Employee Benefits” (“IAS 197).

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of the financial position represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligation. Calculated whole actuarial gains and losses are recognized
in other comprehensive income

Statement of Cash Flow

In statement of cash flows, cash flows are classified according to operating, investing and financing
activities.

Share Capital and Dividends

Commen shares are classified as equity. Dividends on common shares are recognized in equity in the
period in which they are approved and declared.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.10 Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Crfical judements in applving the Group’s accounting policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IAS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Impairment test of Goodwill

Pursuant to IAS 36, Impairment of Assets, the Group tested goodwill as of 31 December 2016 in
accordance with the accounting policy stated at (Note: 2.9). The goodwill impairment test is carried out
for Retail and Distribution Cash Generating Units (“CGUs™).

The following assumptions were used to determine the recoverable amount of Retail CGU:

CGU: Retail

Base used for the recoverable amount: Value in use

Source: Forecasted cash flows
WACC (TL): 14.5%

The net present value of Retail CGU was calculated by discounting the TL post-tax free cash flows, which
is the functional currency of the Group. The Group compared the recoverable amount calculated based on
the aforementioned assumptions to the total value of Retail CGU and no impairment was identified.

The following assumptions were used to determine the recoverable amount of Distribution CGU:

CGU: Distribution

Base used for the recoverable amount: Value in use

Source: Forecasted cash flows for the license period
WACC (TL): 13%

The net present value of Distribution CGU was calculated by discounting the post-tax free cash flows for
the discrete period from 2016 to 2036 for BEDAS and from 2016 to 2042 for AYEDAS and TORQSLAR
EDAS. This calculation includes the discounted values of the TL cash flows of Distribution CGU which is
the functional currency of the Group. The Group compared the recoverable amount calculated based on
the aforementioned assumptions to the total value of Distribution CGU and no impairment was identified.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.10 Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions (cont’d)

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (cont’d)
Keyv sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
consolidated balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustinent to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is discussed below:

Service concession arrangements

The Group determines the financial asset and financial income balances recognized under service
concession arrangements based on the cash flows derived from the tariffs anmounced by EMRA. The
distribution revenue requirement of the Group during the second (2011 - 2016) and third tariff periods
(2016 - 2020) was determined by EMRA considering the projected expenses and related tariffs which
were published in 2010 and 2016. Moreover, distribution revenue requirements from the end of third tariff
period to the end of license (2036 for BEDAS and 2042 for AYEDAS and TOROSLAR EDAS) are
expected by the Group management based on the tariff components announced for the third tariff period.
These tariffs are revised yearly due to inflation, based on the changes in the Electricity Market Index
(“EMI” is defined as change in CPI on the communique of Distribution System). In determination of the
aforementioned projected cash inflows in the upcoming periods the Group management made expectations
related to the CPI and WACC rates.

Revenue recognition

Invoices of the subscribers other than residential and commercial groups are issued monthly at the end of
each month by the Group whereas the invoices of the residential subscribers are issued continuously
during each month due to the high number of subscribers in this group. Commercial group subscribers are
also issued continuously during the month due to the high number of customers in this group although the
subscribers with high consumption level are billed at the end of the month. As a result, the total electricity
supplied to the residential and commercial subscribers during each month cannot be invoiced and income
accruals are recognized as revenue at period-ends for these customer groups based on the actual billing
performance.
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SHARES IN SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiaries:
Proportion of ownership (%)
Place of
incorporation 31 December 31 December 31 December
Name of Subsidiary Principal activity  and operation 2016 2015 2014
BEDAS Electricity Ankara 160 100 100
distribution
services
EPS Electricity retail Ankara 100 100 100
services
AYEDAS Electricity Estanbul 100 100 100
distribution
services
AEPSAS Electricity retail Istanbul 100 100 100
services
TOROSLAR EDAS Electricity Adana 100 100 100
distribution
services
TOROSLAR EPSAS Electricity retail Adana 100 100 100
services
Group Structure:
Number of subsidiaries wholly
owned by the Group
Place of
incorporation and 31 December 31 December 31 December
Principal Activity operation 2016 2015 2014
Ankara, Istanbul,
Electricity distribution services Adana 3 3 3
Ankara, Istanbul,
Electricity retail services Adana 3 3 3
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The immediate parents and ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Hac: Omer Sabanci Holding A.S.
(incorporated in Turkey) and E.ON SE (“E.ON"- incorporated in Germany). Transactions between the

Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

31 December 31 December 31 December

Related Party Bank Balances- Akbank T A.S. 2016 2015 2014
Demand deposits 4,307 32,366 3,067
Repurchase agreements 8,614 55,406 67,796
12,921 87,772 70,863

31 December 2016

Loans provided by Original Interest Current Non-current
related parties currency Maturity rate % liabilities liabilities
Akbank T.A S, TL 2 January 2017 10.20 49,800 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 2 January 2017 10.80 189,650 -
Albank T.A.S. TL 28 January 2017 13.91 18,000 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 29 March 2017 12.86 19,000 -
Akbank T.AS. TL 2 June 2017 12.08 404,000 -
Alkbank T.A.S. TL 29 September 2017 11.18 494,000 -
Akbank T.AS. TL 1 December 2017 13.65 162,000 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 2 December 2017 12.90 150,000 -
Alkbank T.A.S. TL 30 March 2018 12.86 - 250,000
Albank T.AS. TL 29 hly 2019 13.91 - 297,000
Akbank T.A.S. TL 9 September 2019 12.87 - 200,000
Alkbank T.A.S. TL 30 September 2020 13.65 - 303,000
Enerjisa Enerji A.S. TL 23 January 2017 14.53 83,502 -
1,569,952 1,050,000
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)

31 December 2015

Loans provided by Original Interest Current Non-current
related parties currency Maturity rate % liabilities liabilities
Akbank T.A.S. TL 4 January 2016 interest free 1,831 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 4 Janvary 2016  interest free 875 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 4 January 2016 1275 12,850 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 4 January 2016 11.25 85,360 -
Enerjisa Enerji A.S. TL 25 Januvary 2016 13.62 71,000 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 2 June 2017 12.08 - 403,946
Akbank T.A.S. TL 20 June 2016 10.60 100,000 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 30 September 2016 10.60 150,000 -
Enerjisa Enerji A.S. TL 12 December 2016 14,22 28,000 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 30 December 2016 10.50 50,000 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 29 September 2017 11.18 - 493,754
Akbank T.A.S. TL 1 December 2017 13.65 - 161,769
Akbank T.A.S. TL 2 December 2017 12.90 . 150,000
Enerjisa Enerji A.S. TL 23 January 2017 14.53 - 20,000
469.916 1,229,469
31 December 2014
Loans provided by Original Interest Current Non-current
related parties currency Maturity rate % liabilities liabilities
Alkbank T.AS. TL 30 January 2015 0.45% 200,000 -
Akbank T.AS, TL 2 January 2015  interest free 2,711 -
Akbank T.A.S. TL 19 June 2016 10.60% - 100,000
Akbank T.A.S. TL 31 December 2016 10.50% - 100,000
Akbank T.AS. TL 30 October 2016 10.60% - 150,000
Akbank T AS. TL 1 January 2015 11.00% 20,900 -
Akbank T A S. TL 29 September 2017 10.65% - 480,000
223,611 830,000
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)

31 December 2016

Receivables Payables
Current Current
Balances with Related Parties Trade Non-trading Trade
Bimsa Uluslararas: Is ve Bilgi Sistemleri A.S. - - 7,164
Cimsa Cimento Sanayi A.S. 13,518 - -
Enerjisa Elektrik Enerjisi Toptan Satis A.S, (*) 2,242 - 111,738
Aksigorta A.S. - - 2,304
Enerjisa Enerji A.S. 41 2,575
Other - 2 2,280
15,801 2 126,061
31 December 2015
Receivables Payables
Current Current
Balances with Related Parties Trade Non-trading Trade
Bimsa Uluslararas: Is ve Bilgi Sistemleri A.S. - - 13,440
Cimsa Cimento Sanayi A.S. 300 - -
Enerjisa Elektrik Enerjisi Toptan Satig A.S. (*) 3,906 28 114,098
Enerjisa Enerji Uretim A.S. 1,309 - 20
AvivaSA Emeklilik ve Hayat A.S. - - 32
Temsa Global San. ve Tic. A.3. 191 - -
Aksigorta A.S. 22 39 1,294
Enerjisa Enerji A.S. 52 - 749
Hact Omer Sabanc: Holding A.S. 1 - 13
Other 343 - 351
6,124 67 120.999
31 December 2014
Receivables Payables
Current Current
Balances with Related Parties Trade Non-trading Trade
Enerjisa Elektrik Enerjisi Toptan Satisg A.S. (*) 17,099 - 58,233
Enerjisa Uretim A_S. {*) 86 - 6
Bimsa Uluslararas: {s ve Bilgi Sistemleri A.S. - - 79
AvivaSA Emeklilik ve Hayat A.S. - - 3
Temsa Global San. ve Tic. A.S. “ - 91
Aksigorta A.S. - - 1,640
Enerjisa Enerji A.S. - - 3,109
Hac1 Omer Sabanci Holding A.S. - - 48
Other - - 43
17,185 - 63.252

(*) Due to the electricity purchased and sold.
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AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont’d)
Key management compensation

Key management personnel comprises, members of board of directors and members of execution
committee. Compensation of key management personnel comprises professional fees and other benefits
such as; salaries, premium, healthcare insurance and transportation. The remuneration of directors and
other members of key management during the year were as follows:

I January- 1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014

Gross salaries 2,963 2,225 2,747
Other personnel related expense 689 325 176
3,652 2,550 2,923
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a)

ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL.) unless otherwise stated.)
TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Trade Receivables:

31 December 31 December 31 December

Current Trade Receivables 2016 2015 2014
Trade receivables 2,737.656 2,433 869 2,348,528
Due from related parties (Note: 4) 15,801 6,124 17,185
Allowance for doubtful receivables (-) (1,032,928) (894,662) (894,346)

1,720,529 1,545,331 1,471,367

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables amounting TL 1,287,924 (31 December 2015: TL 1,118,804,
31 December 2014: TL 1,017,461) were neither past due nor impaired. The average credit period on sale
of electricity is 15 days for public institutions and 10 days for the remaining subscribers. Interest is

charged at 1.40% (31 December 2015: 1.40%, 31 December 2014: 1.40%) per month on the outstanding
receivable balances.

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables amounting TL 432,605 (31 December 2015: TL 426,527, 31
December 2014: TL 453,906) were past due but not impaired. The balance relates to many independent
public and private subscribers. The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Aging of Receivables that are Due but not Impaired
31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
Up to 3 months 333,392 304,567 330,850
3 to 6 months 94,918 117,407 113,499
Over 6 months 4,295 4,533 9,557
432,605 426,527 453,906

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of TL. 1,032,928 (31 December 2015: TL 894,662, 31
December 2014: TL 894,346) were considered as impaired and a provision was provided for these trade
receivables. The provision for trade receivables is provided based on the aging analysis taken from the
aforementioned billing and collection system. Group management considers the receivables overdue by
more than 180 days as impaired by taking the past defaunlt experience into consideration. In addition,

Group management considers irrigation and government receivables overdue by more than 365 days as
impaired.
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira {TL) unless otherwise stated,)

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)

Trade Receivables (cont’d):

Movements of the provision for allowance of trade receivables are as follows:

1 January- 1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014

Balance at beginning of the year (894,662) {894,3486) (662,244)

Charge for the period (264,351) {179,111) (149,668)
Amounts collected during the year 126,085 178,795 72,131

Provision charged due to system migration(*) - - (154,565)

Closing balance {1,032,928) {894,662) (894,346)

(*) In 2014, AYEDAS, AEPSAS, TOROSLAR EDAS§ and TOROSLAR EPSAS switched to a new billing,
collection and customer relations management system from Abonenet which is integrated with the accounting
software and the customer database, With the effect of the system change, these companies were able to
reconcile trade receivables, deposits and guarantees received and paid balances periodically to the accounting
records following the data cleansing procedures performed. Due to the aforementioned system migration, the
Group adjusted its trade receivables, deposits and guarantees paid and received accounts as of 31 December

2014.

The Group received guarantee letters amounting to TL 477,204 (31 December 2015: TL 440,687, 31
December 2014: TL 383,835) and deposits and guarantees amounting to TL 880,004 (31 December 2015:
TL 735,201, 31 December 2014: 608,063) as collateral for its electricity receivables.

Trade Payables:
31 December 31 December 31 December
Current Trade Payables 2016 2015 2014
Trade payables 991,607 696,991 753,236
Due to related parties (Note: 4) 126,061 129,999 63,252
1,117,668 826,990 816,483

Trade payables mainly arise from the Group’s electricity purchases made from Tiirkiye Elektrik Ticaret ve
Taahhiit A.S. (TETAS) and Eneni Piyasalan Isletme A.S. (EPIAS). The average credit period on

purchases of electricity is between 18 and 20 days.
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) untess otherwise stated.)

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Other Receivables:

31 December 31 December 31 December
Other Current Receivables 2016 2015 2014
Sundry receivables 095,126 35,983 21,167
Allowance for other doubtful receivables (-) (3,123) (3,123 (3,123)
Receivables from personnel 176 51 97
Due from related parties (Note: 4) 2 67 -
Deposits paid 25,624 24,339 16,798
Income accruals (*) 275,666 214,946 182,768
393,471 272,263 217,707

31 December

31 December

31 December

Other Non-Current Receivables 2016 2015 2014
Deposits paid (**) 161,011 130,923 101,211
Income accruals (*) 33,879 251,259 201,265
Sundry receivables (**%) 35,845 - -
230,735 382,182 302,476

(*) According to the Electricity Market Law, the Electricity Market Tariffs Communiqué and other related regulations the
Group’s distribution, transmission and meter reading services have revenue caps which cover operating expenses and
investment requirements related to distribution and meter reading. Moreover, transmission revenue is a complete pass-
through of transmission costs as charged by TEIAS. These regulations guarantee a revenue to the Group regardless of the
consumption level of subscribers. The underbillings or overbillings made by the Group are adjusted by EMRA in the tariffs
to be effective in two years. The effects of the underbillings, which means the actual revenue is below the revenue cap set by

EMRA, are accounted as income accruals at the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

{**) The balance represents subscription fees refunded to the subscribers, subscribed before 31 March 2006 for EPS and 24 July
2006 for AEPSAS and TOROSLAR EPSAS (Note: 1) when they leave the system. The balances were paid to the subscribers
based on their indexed amounts as required by EMRA periodically. According to the TOR Agreement signed with TEDAS,
retail companies (EPS, AEPSAS and TOROSLAR EPSAS) are obliged to keep deposits refunded with their fair values and

the net balance of deposits received and paid will be paid back to TEDAS at the end of the license periods,

(***) The Company management has assessed that the severance payment provision can be taken with the revenue requirement
according to the tariff structure changing with the "Third Tariff Period" and has imposed an allowance for the severance

payment provision calculated as of 31 December 2016.
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.}

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)

Other Receivables (cent’d):

Movement of allowance for other doubtful receivables is as follows:

1 January- 1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014

Opening balance (3,123) (3,123) {6,192)
Amounts recovered during the year - - 3,069
Closing balance (3,123) (3,123) (3,123)

Other Payables:

31 December

31 December

31 December

Other Current Payables 2016 2015 2014
Other payable 123,510 105,918 30,707
Lighting payables 28,236 - -
Deposits received 8,492 11,800 5,810
160.238 117,718 36,517

31 December

31 December

31 December

Other Non-Current Payables 2016 2015 2014
Deposits received (*) 880,004 735,201 608,063
880,004 735,201 608,063

{(*} The Group receives deposits from the customers subscribed after 31 March 2006 for EPS and 24 July 2006 for AEPSAS and
TOROSLAR EPSAS (Note 1) upon their subscription on behalf of TEDAS and these deposits are initially recorded at their
fair values as the subscription fee charged to customers represents the fees announced by EMRA, According to the TOR
Agreements signed with TEDAS, retail companics (EPS, AEPSAS and TOROSLAR EPSAS) are obliged to carry the
deposits received by their fair values and the net balance of deposits received and paid will be paid back to TEDAS at the
end of the license period.

Payables to Privatization Administration:

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
Current payables to Privatization Administration (*) - 1,188,456 1,237,732
Non-current payables to Privatization Administration (*) - - 1,176,074
- 1,188,456 2,413,806

{*) The balance represents the remaining installments of AYEDAS, AEPSAS, TOROSLAR EDAS and TOROSLAR EPSAS
acquisitions with PPI + 2% interest rate.
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

INVENTORIES

Spare parts and equipments
Other inventories

PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

Prepaid Expenses:

31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014

72,531 61,763 53,596

1,928 1,708 1,605
74459 63.471 55.201

31 December

31 December

31 December

Short-term Prepaid Expenses 2016 2015 2014
Prepaid expenses 11,317 10,353 8,506
Inventory advances given 2,411 2,667 3,214
Personnel advances 345 385 -
Other advances given 83 7 321
14,156 13.412 12,041

31 December 31 December 31 December

Long-term Prepaid Expenses 2016 2015 2014
Fixed asset advances given 1,516 1,876 4,140
1,516 1,876 4,140

Deferred Income:

31 December

31 December

31 December

Short Term Deferred Income 2016 2015 2014

Deferred income (*) 165,711 173,216 75,161
Advances received 22 73 -

165,733 173,289 75,161

31 December 31 December 31 December

Long Term Deferred Income 2016 2015 2014
Deferred income (*) 25,617 101,624 158,385
25,617 101,624 158,385

(*) According to the Electricity Market Law, the Eleetricity Market Tariffs Communiqué and other related regulations the Group’s
distribution, transmission and meter reading services have revenue caps which cover operating esxpenses and investment
requirements related to distribution and meter reading. Moreover, transmission revenue is a complete pass-through of transmission
costs as charged by TEIAS. These regulations guarantee a revenue to the Group regardless of the consumption level of subseribers.
The underbillings or overbillings made by the Group are adjusted by EMRA in the tariffs to be effective in two years. The effects
of the overbillings, which means the actual revenue is above the revenue cap set by EMRA, are accounted as deferred income at

the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

41



[44

“porrad yons u1 peounocuue s)uouoduios JJIR) 9Y) U0 paseq 9SUsS] oY) JO pud 2y 0) du porad
o1} 10y Juowarnbal onuoASI o pur pouad JjLIE} PINp 23 1@ [OPOW JOSSE [EroueuLy o1 sojewnss dnoin oy ‘arojarsy], ‘spoued SUIMOI[0] 2y 10f pojuew]durt oq 0)
poylowW a1f} UI SABUBHQ JUBDIJIUSIS AUE 94 JOU PINOAM 2JOY) 1Y) UOISN[OU0D ¢ 0] owes dnoiny sy, ‘¢z Jo pue o) 4q porrad jjue) pay) 01 pajepal sjusuodiuod Jyue) jo
JUDAOUNOUUE 1) FULMOJ[OF SI9ADMOY] “poriad JJLIE) PUOSSS DY) JO JuoA 1SB] oY) SEMm UDIYM ¢ 107 Jed£ oy} [run saSij o) uo paseq padoeaap seam ponad suy) Furmp
pordde opow jesse jeroweury ‘spotrad Jyue) Suimofjoy aip Sunmp payuswodur aq o) AFojopoiewr JJrel o uo Auieusoun of anp ‘mq ‘spouad yons 10§ NI
AQ paumiIglop SIam SEOIAIOS SuIPEaI JOJOwW puE UONNQLISIP J0j Juowannbor onussor ‘porrad Jyuw) puodss oy} Fuung "$107 pue Q107 W paysyqud oxom yorgm
SpyLIR) paje[al o) SULISPISHOD VYN Aq pauruiep sem sporrad Jjue) (0Z07-9107) PHW pue (ST0Z-1107) puooss oyl Suunp dnoiny oy) Jo juswarmbar onudAdx
UOHNGIHSIP SY Y, 'SOICILSS HiL)eo SosUdwos ‘SHMSTURL UOISSOOUOD 90TAISS JO SUKIS) 9y} (s douepiooor w paiedord ‘jopow josse jeoueury s duoiny oy, ()

6T C8LT 6€0° 120 € S0E€6T b

TTE6OT'1 90696 T 765°6£9°c JOSSE [BIOURUL JUALIND - UON

0L8°TT¢€ CLG SSH $$L°€S9 19SSE [PIDULULY JUALINT)

61 ¢8L°T 650710 90€ €67t 61 28LT 650°T20°€ 90€€6T

- - - (969°LT T 9t) 61+ 301 St) (IvL°859° 1) SUIODU] [RIDURULY 21NN,

T61°78L°1 6£0°T20°€ 90€°C6TF 888°668°LY 8P 6T 8T LP0O'TS6 Y

61 $90°69¢°C 7SS6£9°C FOSTTET LY 1099+ LY FLE QIO LY 10k U0 uey} IO

0L8°C1E CLG'SSH PSLIESO F2E°L99 L$8P96 CLSTHET 1894 JUO UM
() Y102 ¢r10z 9107 (3) P10T ¢10z 9107

Jaquieoacy [¢

Ioquioda( 1€

IqQUISI(T T

IoqUIAA(T 1€

QU ¢

10qQUIO0A(T 1§

S)OSSE [BIOURUIJ JO Ad

519SSE [EIOULUL]

:SMO[[0] SB ST JUSWATURLIE HOISSIOU0I HOIAIDS O} JOPUN POSINTOIDI $19558 [RIOUETI] OU) JO [I)9P OU L, ‘19858 [RIOUBUIJ SE ‘JudwoSuelie oy Jo ofi| pajoadxa o
y8nony) s1dioool Yseo sInny pojeIunss paaunodsIp o) pasiufooas sey dnoiy sy} YuowdsTurLIz UOISSHOUDD DOIAIIS ) UI SULIS} 81) SULIAPISU0D (67 910N ui pauteidxs sy

SLASSY TVIDNVNIA

(*paIs 95110 Sso(un (FLL) W] YSIan] Jo spuusnoly) su passardxs s sjunoury}

PI0T JTGNIDAA 1€ ANV STOZ JAGWADA 1€ “9107 YFFWIDAA 1€ AANT SUVHA HHL Y04
SINFWHLVYLS TYIONVNId A3LVAITOSNOD HHL OL S3LON

SATIVIAISENS SLI ANV
SV WLLID VA NTHIMATH VSIFIANT



ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.

AND I'TS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

PROPERTY, PLLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

Cost Value

Opening balance as of 1 January 2016
Additions
Closing balance as of 31 December 2016

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening balance as of 1 January 2016
Charge for the period

Closing balance as of 31 December 2016
Carrying value as of 31 December 2016

Cost Value

Opening balance as of 1 January 2015
Additions

Transfers from constructions in progress
Closing balance as of 31 December 2015

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening balance as of T January 2015
Charge for the period
Closing balance as of 31 December 2015

Carrying value as of 31 December 2015

Machinery and Motor Furniture  Construction in
equipment vehicles  and fixtures progress Total
4,306 36,946 213 - 41,965
10,255 - 25,457 - 35712
15,061 36,946 25,670 - 77,677
- (10,974} {141) - (11,115
(1,052) (4,801) (2,699) - (8,3532)
(1,052) (15,775) (2,840 - (19,667}
14,009 21,171 22,830 - 58,010
Machinery and Motor Furniture  Construction in
equipment vehicies  and fixtures progress Total
- 369 213 - 582
- 36,577 - 4,806 41,383
4,806 - - {4,806) -
4,806 36,946 213 - 41,965
- (369) (85) - (454)
- {10,605) (56) - (10,661)
- (10,974) (141) - (11,115
4,806 25,972 72 - 30,850
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS (cont’d)

Cost Value

Opening balance as of 1 January 2014
Disposals

Closing balance as of 31 December 2014

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening balance as of 1 January 2014
Disposals

Closing balance as of 31 December 2014

Carrying value as of 31 December 2014

Plant, machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures

Depreciation expense of TL 8,552 (2015: TL 10,661, 2014: None) in ‘administrative expenses’.

Machinery and Motor Furniture  Constraction in
equipment vehicles  and fixtures progress Total
- 369 922 - 1,291
- - (709) - (709)
- 369 213 - 582
- (369) (204) - (573)
- - 119 - 119
- (369} (85) - (454)
- - 128 - 128
Useful Life

5 years

3 years

5 years
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{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) uniess otherwise stated.)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost Value

Opening balance as of 1 January 2016
Additions
Closing balance as of 31 December 2016

Accumulated Amortization

Opening balance as of 1 January 2016
Charge for the period

Closing balance as of 31 December 2016
Carrying value as of 31 December 2016

Cost Value

Opening balance as of 1 January 2015
Closing balance as of 31 December 2015

Accumulated Amortization

Opening balance as of 1 January 2013
Charge for the period

Closing balance as of 31 December 2015
Carrying value as of 31 December 2015

Customer
contracts and  Transfer of Other
related operating Computer  intangible
relationships rights  Goodwill software assets Total
4,390,673 1,650,121 2,730,031 1,852 - 8,771,877
- - - - 28,480 28,480
4390,673 1,650,121 2,730,031 1,152 28,480 8,800,457
{547,263) (152,031} - (427) - (699,721)
(152,108) (56,555) - (723) - {209,386)
{699,371) (208,586) - {1,150) - (909,107)
3,691,302 1,441,535 2,730,031 2 28,480 7,891,350
Customer
contracts and  Transfer of Other
related operating Computer  intangible
relationships rights  Goodwill software assets Total
4,390,673 1,650,121 2,730,031 1,152 - 8,771,977
4,390,673 1,650,121 2,730,031 1,152 - 8,771,977
(395,155) (95,475) - (324) - {490,954)
(152,108) (56,556) - {103) - (208,767)
(547,263) (152,031) - {427) - (699,721
3,843,410 1,498,090 2,730,031 725 - 8,072,256
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AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)

Customer
contracts and  Transfer of Other
related operating Computer  intangible

relationships rights  Goodwill software assets Total
Cost Value
Opening balance as of 1 January 2014 4,390,673 1,650,121 2,730,031 1,152 - 8771977
Closing balance as of 31 December 2014 4,360,673 1,650,121 2,730,031 1,152 - BI71.977
Accumulated Amortization
Opening balance as of 1 January 2014 (243,047) (38,920} - (324} - (282,291)
Charge for the period (152,108) {56,555) - - - (208,663)
Closing balance as of 31 December 2014 (395,155) (95,473) - (324) - (490,954)
Carrying value as of 31 December 2014 3,995,518 1,554,640 2,730,031 828 - 8,281,023

Customer contracts and related relationships and transfer of operating rights are separately recognised
during the business combination according to IFRS 3,

On 31 March 2006 BEDAS and on 24 July 2006, AYEDAS and TOROSL.AR EDAS signed TOR
Agreements with TEDAS. In accordance with the TOR agreement, TEDAS transferred the operating
rights of the distribution system, the distribution facilities, the other movables and immovables which are
crucial for the operation of the distribution facilities to BEDAS until the end of 2036 and to AYEDAS and
TOROSLAR EDAS until the end of 2042, Based on the future cash flows fair value of the TOR
agreements are determined. The residual value of TOR after the portion recognized as financial asset
which calculated based on TFRIC 12 (see Note: 9) is recognized as intangible asset based on IFRS 3.

In recognition of customer contracts and related relationships; relationships with the different customer
groups are identified and a fair value for retail customers is estimated by Group management.

Customer contracts and related relationships and TOR amortization is calculated on a straight line basis in
a range between 25-30 years and charged to operating expenses.

Amortization expense of TL. 209,386 (2015: TL 208,767, 2014 TL 208,663) in ‘administrative expenses’.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

PROVISIONS
31 December 31 December 31 December
Current Provisions 2016 2015 2014
Legal claims (*) 138,417 145,220 144,547
138,417 145,220 144,547

(*)  Legal claims are set for the probable cash outflows related to the legal disputes. As of 31 December 2016, actual provision
amount for the legal claims are determined according to the assessment made by the Group management in which there is
high probability that the legal cases will be finalized against the Group.

The Group is charging the theft and loss costs to the subscribers in accordance with the tariff determined
by Energy Market Regulatory Authority ("EMRA”). There are legal cases filed by the subscribers to claim
back the theft and loss amounts from the Group claiming that they are unfair. Some cases are finalized
against the Group while some others in favour of the Group at local courts and consumer arbitrage
committees. In June of 2016, statement of “In applications filed in respect of the amounts determined by
EMRA within the scope of income and tariff regulations, the authority of the consumer arbitration
committees and the courts is limited to the control of compliance with the regulatory procedures of
EMRA.” has been added to article 17 of Law No. 6446. By this article, it has been determined that in the
cases for the theft and loss amounts, the courts can only examine if the theft and loss amounts incurred in
accordance with the regulations of the EMRA and it has been ruled that no judgement can be made
whether the theft and loss amounts will be collected or not. As of reporting date, the total amount of

ongoing cases against the Group is TL 176,134 (31 December 2015: TL 89,826; 31 December 2014:
None).

Movements of provisions are as follows:

Legal

claims Total
Balance at 1 January 2016 145,220 145,220
Additional provisions recognized 31,726 31,726
Reversal of provisions (38,529 (38,529)
Balance at 31 December 2016 138,417 138,417

Legal

claims Total
Balance at 1 January 2015 144,547 144,547
Additional provisions recognized 16,270 16,270
Reversal of provisions (15,597) (15,597)
Balance at 31 December 2013 145,220 145,220

Legal

claims Total
Balance at 1 January 2014 154,662 154,662
Additional provisions recognized 38,110 38,110
Reversal of provisions (48,225) (48,225)
Balance at 31 December 2014 144,547 144,547
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira {TL) unless otherwise stated.}

COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES {cont’d)

Investment obligations

Annmual expansion, replacement, and improvement investments that are stated in TOR and required to be
completed by the Group have been determined during the preparation of the tariffs. These investments have
been included in the first implementation period tariffs approved by EMRA and as a result the Group is
obliged to make these determined investments. Implementation of these investments is monitored by EMRA
by the reports received from the Group at the end of each year. Some of these investments are subject to unit
prices per announced by EMRA, According to the regulations, the Group is allowed to make transfers
between the years after taking approval of EMRA,

Enerey Sales Agreements

Distribution and retail companies signed Energy Sales Agreements (ESA) with TETAS in order to obtain
their energy needs during the year. These Energy Sales Agreements have been established based on regulated
prices. During the year, the Group is obliged to purchase the energy quantity stated in these agreements. At
the current operating conditions and market structure, the Group’s energy needs are higher than the
contracted quantities and the Group makes purchases regularly from EPIAS. As a result, the Group
management does not expect any liability related to the Energy Sales Agreements arising from not fulfilling
the requirements of ESAs.

Competition Board Investigation

Further to a preliminary inquiry in November 2016, The Competition Board resolved to commence an
investigation in December 2016 to check if the Company’s subsidiaries are in compliance with the
Competition Law (Law no: 4054). Investigation process is expected to be finalized by the end of August
2018.

The Competition Board’s Investigation Notification contains very limited information conceming the
allegation. The Investigation Notification to the Company’s subsidiaries and the announcement to the Public
cannot be interpreted as the undertakings of the related subsidiaries have violated the Competition Law or the
subsidiaries will be punished. The Company and its subsidiaries execute its fransactions within the
Competition Law and other regulations.
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{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) uniess otherwise stated.)

EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Payable to personnel
Social security premiums payable

Short-term Provisions Related to Emplovee Benefits:

Bonus provisions
Provisions for unused vacation

The movement for bonus and unused vacation provisions are as follows:

Balance at ] January 2016
Additional provisions recognized
Reversal of provisions

Balance at 31 December 2016

Balance at | Januvary 2015
Additional provisions recognized
Reversal of provisions

Balance at 31 December 2015

Balance at I January 2014
Additional provisions recognized
Reversal of provisions

Balance at 31 December 2014
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31 December 31 Decemmber 31 December
2016 2015 2014

16,079 3,648 11,714
23,151 11,891 9,652
39.230 15,539 21,366

31 December 31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
12,398 7,794 7,814
17,064 14,320 11,328
29,462 22,114 19,142
Bonus  Unused vacation
provisions provision Total
7,754 14,320 22,114
13,736 3,179 16,915
(9,132) (435) (9,567)
12,398 17,064 20,462
Bonus  Unused vacation
provisions provision Total
7,814 11,328 19,142
7,010 2,888 9,898
(7,030) 104 (6,926)
7,794 14,320 22,114
Bonus  Unused vacation
provisions provision Total
3,550 9,783 13,333
7,814 2,108 9,922
(3,550) (563) (4,113)
7,814 11,328 19,142




14.

ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL} unless otherwise stated.)
EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (cont’d)

Long-term Provisions Related to Emplovee Benefits:

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
Provision for employment termination benefits 56,442 58,825 38,555
56,442 58,825 38,555

Under Turkish Labor Law, the Group is required to pay termination benefits to each employee who has
completed certain years of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, who is called up
for military service, dies or retires after completing 25 years of service and reaches the retirement age (58 for
women and 60 for men).

The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of TL 4,297.21 (full digit) (2015:
TL 3,328.37 (full digit), 2014 TL 3,438.22 (full digit)} for each period of service at 31 December 2016.

The provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the
Group arising from the retirement of employees. IAS 19 requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed
{o estimate the enterprise’s obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordingly, the following actuarial
assumptions were used in the calculation of the total liability.

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase parallel with
inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anticipated
effects of future inflation. Consequently, in the accompanying financial statements as at 31 December 2016,
the provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the
Company arising from the retirement of the employees. The provisions at the respective balance sheet dates
have been calculated assuming an annual inflation rate of 7.00% and a discount rate of 11.30%, resulting in a
real discount rate of approximately 4.02% (31 December 2015: inflation rate of 7.50% and discount rate of
11.00%, resulting in a real discount rate of approximately 3.26%, 31 December 2014: inflation rate of 6.00%
and discount rate of 9.00%, resulting in a real discount rate of approximately 2.83% ) Estimated amount of
retirement pay not paid due to voluntary leaves is also taken into consideration as 3.28 % for employees
with 0-15 years of service, and 0% for those with 16 or more years of service. Ceiling amount of TL
4,426.16 which is in effect since 1 January 2016 is used in the caleulation of Groups’ provision for
retirement pay liability (1 January 2016: TL 4,092.53 (full digit), 1 January 2015: 3,541.37 (full digit)).

The movement for retirement pay provisions is as follows:

1 January- 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 DPecember
2016 2015 2014
Provision at ! January 58,825 38,555 32,704
Service cost 18,897 13,208 23,018
Interest cost 1,557 1,442 1,969
Actanial gain / loss (4,505) 13,516 -
Retirement pay paid {18,332) (7,896) (39,136)
Provision at 31 December 56,442 58,825 38,555
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(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira {TL) unless otherwise stated.}

OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Other Current Assets:

Deferred VAT
Prepaid taxes and funds
Other

Other Non-current Assets:

Deferred VAT

Other Current Liabilities:

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
3,587 20,578 39,792
181 3,167 -
719 182 -
4,487 23,927 39,792

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
123,032 157,439 116,332
123,032 157,439 116,332

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
Taxes and funds payable 166,702 141,563 116,733
Other 4,112 4,332 3,913
170,814 145,895 120,646

SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS

Share Capital:

31 December 31 December 31 December
Shareholders % 2016 % 2015 % 2014
Enerjisa Enenji A.S. 100 3,964,528 100 4,389,585 100 4,389,585
Nominal Capital 100 3,964,528 100 4,389,585 100 4,389,585

At 31 December 2016, the capital of the Company comprising 396,452,800 (2015: 438,958,520, 2014:

438,958,520) registered shares of TL 0,01 each (2015: TL 0,01 each, 2014: TL 0,01 each).

It has been decided by the Board of Directors of the Company to make a capital reduction pursnant fo
Article 474 of the Turkish Commercial Code in order to close the deficit in the carry forward-losses in the
balance sheet with the 14-point decision taken on November 30, 2016. As a result of this transaction,
decreased capital amount has been deducted from previous years losses and no change has occurred in

total equity.
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(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated,)

SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS (cont’d)

Restricted Profit Reserves:

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014

Restricted Profit Reserves 139,190 53,303 53,303
139,190 53,303 53,303

The Company, reserves 5% of the historical statutory profit as first legal reserve, until the total reserve
reaches 20% of the historical paid in share capital. The other legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10%
per annum of all cash dividend distributions after the payment of dividends to the shareholders at a rate of
5%. According to Turkish Commercial Law, general legal reserves can only be used if it does not exceed the
capital or issued capital for close the losses, continue the business when business is not going well or end the
unemployment and to take suitable precautions to reduce the results of unemployment.

REVENUE

1 January- 1 Jamuary- 1 Janunary-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Revenue from electricity sales and services provided 8,491,243 8,771,706 7,797,085
Retail sales revenue 5,543,040 6,534,463 5,943,531
Retail sales service revenue 243,062 204,659 157,378
Distribution revenue 2,704,241 2,032,584 1,696,176
Finance income from service concession arrangements 609,628 310,955 208,758
Other sales 2,509 70,953 58,578
9,103,380 9,153,614 8,064,421

COST OF SALES
1 January- 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Energy purchases (5,953,189) (6,782,254) (6,463,201)
System usage costs (547,314) (325,289) (284,950)
Other (453) (577 (5,360)
(6,500,956) (7,108,120) (6,753,511}
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GENERAIL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General Administrative Expenses (-)

Details of general administrative expenses are as foilows:

‘Payroll and employee benefit expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Material expenses

Consulting expenses

Rent expenses

Outsourcing expenses

Attorney expenses

Maintenance expenses
Communication and IT expenses

Tax and duties

Security expenses

Travel expenses

Insurance expenses

Other expenses
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I January- 1 January- [ January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
(1,227,836) (1,079,790 (967,303)
(1,227,836) (1,079,790) (967,303)
i January- 1 January- I January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
(539,642) (454,467) (381,034)
(217,938) (219,428) (208,663)
{125,768) (99,683) (91,043)
(43,432) (40,645) (33,738)
(39,535) (40,299) (13,155)
(35,443) (43,371) (98,893)
(35,152) (20,823 (42,162)
(32,511) (26,228) (7,825)
(23,435) {19,171) (19,242)
(23,282) {22,804} (20,319)
(22,357) (20,587) (17,469)
(10,793) (9,305) (7,004)
(9,931) (13,683) (12,598)
(68,617) (49,297) (14,158
(1,227,836} (1,079,790) (967,303)




20.

a)

b)

ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL} unless otherwise stated.)

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Other Income From Operating Activities:

Late payment interest from electricity receivables

Interest income/(expense) related to revenue cap regulation - net
Power theft penalties

Lawsuit income

Rent income

Income from derivative financial instruments

Reversal of provision for doubtful and other receivables

Other income

Other Expenses From Operating Activities:

Provision for doubtful and other receivables

Fair value differences arising from deposits and guarantees
Penalty expenses

Expense due to system migration (¥}

Other expenses

1 January- 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
77,949 91,763 83,089
19,370 2,496 5,313
15,398 17,560 7,736
14,174 - -
6,303 1,717 -
3,886 - -

- - 3,069

7,971 9,797 4697
144,651 123,333 104,204

1 January- 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
(138,266) (316} (74,468)
(40,287 (36,118 (42,627)
(38,393) (5,474) (3,713)
- - (10,131

{29,983} (8,852) (9,235)
(246,929) (50,760) (140,174)

(*) 1In 2014, AYEDAS. AEPSAS, TOROSLAR EDAS and TOROSLAR EPSAS switched 10 a new billing, collection and
customer relations management system from Abonenet which is integrated with the accounting software and the customer
database. With the effect of the system change, these companies were able to reconcile trade receivables, deposits and
guarantees received and paid balances periodically to the accounting records following the data cleansing procedures
performed. Due to the aforementioned system migration, the Group adjusted its trade receivables, deposits and guarantees
paid and received accounts as of 31 December 2014 and as a result, recognized TL 10,131 of other expense in the statement

of profit or loss.
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FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Finance Income:

1 January- 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Interest revenue from repurchase agreements 39,729 31,484 58,692
Foreign exchange gains/{losses) - net - - 9,955
39,729 31,484 68,647

Finance Expenses:
| January- I January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Bank commission expenses (8,549) (11,681) {14,882)
Interest expense of borrowings (*) (735,174) (575,336) (625,10%)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) - net (54,114) (19,837) -
(797,837) (606,854) (639,991}

(*) Total interest expense related to payables of Privatization Administration is TL 41,780 (31 December 2015: TL 129,099, 3§

December 2014: TL 375,639).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDES DEFERRED TAX ASSET AND LIABILITIES)

31 December 31 December 31 December
Assets Related with Current Taxes 2016 2015 2014
Prepaid taxes and funds 238 5,980 20,322
238 5,980 20,322
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Current Tax Liability

Current corporate tax provision 148,215 96,524 51485
Less: prepaid taxes and funds (141,899) (87,649 (51,485)
6,316 8,875 -
1 January- 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
Income Tax. Recognized in Profit or Loss 2016 2015 2014
Current tax expense 148,215 96,524 51,485

Deferred tax expense / {(income) relating to the
origination and reversal of temporary differences (11,406) 30,081 (38,478)
Total tax expense 136,809 126,605 13,007

Corporate tax

The Group is subject to Turkish corporate taxes. Provision is made in the accompanying financial
statements for the estimated charge based on the Group’s results for the period.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the statutory accounting
profit by adding back non-deductible expenses, and by deducting the tax-exempt eamings, other exempt
income and other deductions (Josses of previous periods, investment incentives utilized).

Valid rate of corporate tax in 2016 is 20% (2015: 20%, 2014: 20%).

In Turkey, advance tax retumns are filed on a quarterly basis. The advance corporate income tax rate was
applied as 20% in 2016 (2015: 20%, 2014: 20%). Losses are allowed to be carried 5 years maximumn to be
deducted from the taxable profit of the following years. Tax carry back is not allowed.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file
their tax returns between 1-25 April following the close of the accounting year to which they relate. Tax
authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying accounting records and may revise
assessments within five years.

Income withholding tax

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds
surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are Turkish
residents and Turkish branches of foreign companies. Income withholding tax applied is 15%.
Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject to income withholding tax.
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TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDES DEFERRED TAX ASSET AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

Deferred tax

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities on the temporary timing differences between
the legal books and the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. Such differences generally
arise from timing differences of some revenue and expense balances in legal books and financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS and are explained below.

For calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, the rate of 20% (2015: 20%, 2014: 20%) is used.

a) Deferred tax assets - net:

Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities

Carrying amount differences of property,plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Provision for employment termination benefits
Provision for doubtful receivables

Provision for lawsuits

Provision for unused vacation

Effect of revenue cap adjustments

Late penalty payments

Effect of concession arrangement differences

Adjustments due to system migration

Carry forward tax loss

Other

b) Deferred tax liabilities - net:

Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities

Differences arising from customer contracts
and transfer of operational rights
Other

Movement of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities is as follows:

Opening balance
Charged to income
Charged to equity
Closing balance
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31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
(948,556) (692,630) (547,928)
(1,737) (8,500} (7,711)
(4,693) (5,723) (19,586)
(24,088) (24,498) (26,676)
{2,366) (2,483) (1,63%)
21,879 22,110 19,503
(13,576) (9,769) 2,519
822,224 565,035 324,311
20,976 20,976 (33,640)
{112,936) (117,615) (124,889)
{4.830) (25,833) 72,705
(247,703) (278,930} (348,069

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
1,026,568 1,068,300 1,110,033
96 96 124
1,026,664 1,068,396 1,110,157
1 January- 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
789,466 762,088 800,566
(11,406) 30,081 (38,478)
901 (2,703) -
778,961 789,466 762,088




ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL} unless otherwise stated.)

TAXATION ON INCOME (INCLUDES DEFERRED TAX ASSET AND LIABILITIES) {cont’d)

1 January- 1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December 31 December

Tax Reconciliation: 2016 2015 2014

Profit / loss from operations before tax 514,202 462,907 (263,707)

%20 %20 %20

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 20% (2015: 20%) 102,840 92,581 (52,7141)

Tax effects of:

- expenses that are not deductible in

determining taxable profit 10,765 3,337 1,451

- unused tax losses 23,204 31,222 74,249

- other - (535) (9,952)

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 136,809 126,605 13,007

The expiration dates of previous years’ losses on which deferred tax asset was unrecognized are as
follows:

1 January- I Januvary- 1 January-
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Expiring in 2015 - - 6,064
Expiring in 2016 - 43,945 43,945
Expiring in 2017 - 8,982 8,982
Expiring in 2018 - 29,070 29,070
Expiring in 2019 - 74,249 74,249
Expiring in 2020 - 144,637 -
Expiring in 2021 113,439 - -
113,439 300,383 162,310
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Liabilities:
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Short-term liabilities 1,556,770 915,335 762,210
Bonds issued 364,382 359,677 -
Short-term portion of long-term liabilities and bonds issued 1,176,642 641,052 43,161
Total short term financial liabilities 3,097,794 1,916,004 805,371
Bonds 1ssued - - 350,000
Long-term liabilities 3,200,000 2,878,000 1,748,000
Total long term financial Habilities 3,200,000 2,878,000 2,098,000
Total financial liabilities 6297.794 4.794.064 2,903.371
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
Financial Liabilities (cont’d):

The financial liabilities are repayable as follows:

To be paid within 1 year

To be paid between 1-2 years
To be paid between 2-3 years
To be paid between 3-4 years

31 December

31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
3,097,794 1,916,064 805,371
2,850,000 2,878,000 1,318,000

350,000 - 480,000
- - 300,000
6.297.794 4.794.064 2,903,371

As of 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of short and long term
financial liabilities in terms of currencies are as follows:

Weighted average
effective 31 December 2016
Currency Type interest rate Current Non-current
TL 12.37% 3,083,412 2,850,000
3.083.412 2,850,000
Weighted average
effective 31 December 2015
Currency Type interest rate Current Non-current
TL 11.76% 1,556,387 2,878,000
1,556,387 2.878.000
Weighted average
effective 31 December 2014
Currency Type interest rate Current Non-current
TL 10.74% 796,219 1,748,000
796,219 1,748.000
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Financial Liabilities (cont’d):

As of 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of bond are as follows:

Weighted average
effective 31 December 2016
Currency Type interest rate Current Non-current
TL 12.52% 14,382 350,000
14,382 350,000
Weighted average
effective 31 December 2015
Currency Type interest rate Current Non-current
TL 12.46% 359,677 -
359,677 -
Weighted average
effective 31 December 2014
Currency Type interest rate Current Non-current
TL 11.96% 9,152 350,000
9,152 350,000
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira {TL) unless otherwise stated.)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Other Financial Liabilities:

Other current financial liabilities
Other non-current financial liabilities

31 Pecember

31 December

31 December

The other financial liabilities are repayable as follows:

To be paid within 1 year

To be paid between 1-2 years
To be paid between 2-3 years
To be paid between 3-4 years
To be paid between 4-5 years
To be paid between 5+ years

2016 2015 2014
25,087 20,630 17,185
245,134 232,302 239728
270,221 253,022 256,913
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
25,087 20,630 17,183
25,568 21,488 19,204
26,071 21,899 19,981
26,597 22,330 20,346
34,491 22,780 20,407
132,407 143,895 159,790
270,221 253,022 256.913

As of 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, details of short and long term other
financial liabilities in terms of currencies are as follows:

Weighted average 31 December 2016
effective
Currency Type interest rate Current Non-current
EUROC 4.70% 25,087 245,134
25,087 245,134
Weighted average 31 December 2015
effective
Currency Type interest rate Current Non-current
EURO 4.70% 20,630 232,392
20.630 232,392
Weighted average 31 December 2014
effective
Currency Tvpe interest rate Current Non-current
EURO 4.70% 17,185 239,728
17.185 239728

Other financial liabilities represent the payables to TEDAS for the capital expenditures denominated in

EURO.
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira {TL) unless otherwise stated.)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Capital risk management:

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital and reserves.

The Group management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
The management of the Group aims to balance its overall capital structure through new share issues, and
by issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

2016 2015 2014

IL iL IL

Total borrowings (Note: 23) 6,568,015 6,235,542 5,574,090
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note: 25) (74,570) (152,103) (112,669
Net debt 6,493,445 6,083,439 5,461,421
Total equity 4,746,828 4,365,831 4,040,342
Total capital 11,240,273 10,449,270 9,501,763
Net debt / Total capital ratio 58% 58% 57%

Financial risk factors:

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by finance department. Finance department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.

b.1) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risks mainly arise from trade receivables. The Group
manages this risk by the guarantees received from customers. Trade receivables, are evaluated based on
the Group’s policies and procedures and as a result presented net of doubtful provision in the
consolidated financial statements. Group management evaluates the adequacy of the provision set for the
impaired trade receivable balances based on the aging analysis and considers the receivables overdue by
more than 180 days as impaired. In addition, Group management considers irrigation and government
receivables overdue by more than 365 days as impaired.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries within several
different provinces. Credit risk of the financial instruments is as the follows:
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ENERJISA ELEKTRIK DAGITIM A.S.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016, 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 31 DECEMBER 2014

{Amounts arc expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.}

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (cont’d)
Financial risk factors (cont’d):

b.2} Liquidity risk management

Ultimate control for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which aims to maintain

an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaming contractual maturity for #ts non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and

principal cash flows.

The maturities of the financial liabilities determined with respect to the contracts including the expected
interest payments as of 31 December 2016, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

31 December 2016

Maturity analvsis of non-

derivative financial liabilities

Non-derivative
financial liabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables

Deferred income

Other payables

Other financial liabilities
Total liabilities

31 December 2015

Maturity analvsis of non-
derivative financial liabilities

Non-derivative
financial liabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables

Deferred income

Other payables

Other financial liabilities
Total liabilities

Total cash outflow

according to

Carrying contract Lessthan3  3-12 months Unallocated
yalue (HIHTTHY) months (I} {an 1-5 vears (FIN (IV}
6,297,794 7,867,019 677,672 2,686,931 4,502,416 -
1,117,668 [,117,668 1,117,668 - - -
191,350 195,293 - 165,733 29,560 -
1,040,242 1,004,754 132,518 82,232 - 880,004
270,221 285751 8,912 17,480 118.288 141,071
8,917,275 10,560,485 1,936,770 2,952,376 4,650,264 1,021,075
Total cash_gutflow
according fo
Carrving contract Lessthan 3 3-12 months Unallocated
yalue (I IIHIV) months {T) {an 1-5 vears (II) (IV)
4,794,064 5,852,486 988,125 851,839 4,012,522 -
826,990 826,990 826,990 - - -
274913 281,625 - 173216 108,409 -
2,041,375 2,156,944 55,772 735,284 630,687 735,201
253,022 266,807 3.776 18,490 94,058 150,483
8,190,364 9,384,852 1,874,663 £,778,829 4,845,676 885,684
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(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (cont’d)

Financial risk factors (cont’d):
b.2) Liquidi

31 December 2014

risk management

Total cash outflow

according {o

Maturitv analvsis of non- Carrving contract Lessthan3  3-12 months Unalloeated
derivative financial liabilities  value (IHEHITETVY months {I) an 1-5 vears (1) (V)
Non-derivative

financial liabilitics

Borrowings 2,603,371 3477837 692,056 315,395 2,470,386 -
Trade payables 816,488 816,488 816,488 - - -
Deferred income 233,546 248224 - 75,161 173,063 -
Other payables 3,058,386 3,412,506 125,300 1,404,749 1,274,394 608,063
Other financial liabilities 256,913 323,059 5.302 18,618 104,086 195,053
Total Habilities 7,268,704 8,278,114 1,639,146 1,813,923 4,021,929 803,116

b.3) Market risk management

b.3.1) Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to
exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed by adjusting the unit price / tariff
of the energy sold semi-annually.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

liabilities at the reporting date is disclosed below.

31 December 2016

UsD EUR TL Equivalent
Derivative financial instruments 1,104 - 3,886
Other financial liabilities - (72,838) (270,221}
Trade payables (6,216) (6,653) (46,565}
Other payabies - (24,138) (89,550}
Net foreign currency position (5,112) (103,631) (402,450)
31 December 2015
USD EUR TL Equivalent
Other financial liabilities - (79,627 (253,022)
Trade payables {3,103) (5,344) (26,003)
Net foreign currency position (3,103) (84,971) (279,025)
31 December 2014
USD EUR TL Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents 1,396 - 3,237
Other financial liabilities - (91,081) (256,913)
Trade payables (7.104) (2,418) (23,293)
Net foreign currency position (5,708) (93,499) {276,969)
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(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (cont’d)

Financial risk factors (cont’d):

b.3) Market risk management (cont'd}

b.3.1) Foreign currency risk manavement {cont 'd)

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the USD and EUR.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the TL against the
relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as loans to foreign operations within the Group where
the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the currency of the lender or the borrower. A
positive number indicates an increase in profit or loss before taxation on income where the TL strengthens
against the relevant currency.

TL effect of USD balances TL effect of EUR Balances
2016 2015 2614 2016 2015 2014
Profit and loss (1,799 {902) (1,324) (38,446) (29,685) (26,373)

b.3.2) Interest rate risk management

The Group is not exposed to interest rate risk as the Group does not have funds at floating interest rates as
of 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and the tariff structure imposed by EMRA.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {cont’d)

Financial risk factors (cont’d):

Categories of financial instruments and fair values

31 December 2016

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables (including related parties)
Derivatives

Financial assets

Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Other receivables

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables (including related parties)
Deferred income

Other payables

Other financial liabilities

31 December 2015

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables (including related parties)
Financial assets

Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Other receivables

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables (including related parties)
Deferred income

Other payables

Other financial Habilities

Financial Financial

Loans and assets at liabilities at ~ Carrying
receivables amortized cost amortized cost value Note
74,570 - - 74,570 25
1,720,529 - - 1,720,529 5

- 3,886 - 3,886
4,293,306 - - 4293306 9
15,672 - - 15,672 8
127,519 - - 127,519 15
624,206 - - 624,206 6
- - 6,297,794 6,297,794 23
- - 1,117,668 1,117,668 5
- - 191,350 191,350 8
- - 1,040,242 1,040,242 6
- - 270,221 270,221 23

Financial Financial

Loans and assets at liabilities at ~ Carrying
receivables amortized cost amortized cost value  Note
152,103 . - 152,103 25
1,545,331 - - 1,545,331 5
3,021,039 - - 3,021,039 9
15,288 - - 15,288 8
181,366 - - 181,366 i5
654,445 - - 654,445 6
- - 4,794,064 4,794,064 23
- - 826,990 826,990 5
- - 274,913 274,913 8
- - 2,041,375 2,041375 6
- - 253,022 253,022 23
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(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lim (TL) unless otherwise stated.}

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (cont’d)
Financial risk factors (cont’d):

Categories of financial instruments and fair values (cont’d)

Financial Financial
Loans and assets at liabilities at ~ Carrying

31 December 2014 receivables amortized cost amortized cost value  Note
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 112,669 - - 112,669 25
Trade receivables (including related parties) 1,471,367 - - 1,471,367 5
Financial assets 1,782,192 - - 1,782,192 9
Prepaid expenses 16,181 - - 16,181 8
Other assets 156,124 - - 156,124 15
Other receivables 520,183 - - 520,183 6
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 2,903,371 2,903,371 23
Trade payables (including related parties) - - 816,488 316,488 5
Deferred income - - 233,546 233546 8
Other pavables - - 3,058,386 3,058,386 6
Other financial liabilities - - 256,913 256,913 23

{*} The Group management considers the carrying amount of financial assets approximate their fair values.

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined and grouped as follows:

+ Level 1: the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market
prices;

» Level 2: the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities {(excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions; and

* Level 3: the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities where there is no observable
market data. The fair value of derivative instruments, are calculated using quoted prices. Where
such prices are not available, estimate is made based on discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined.

Valuation Relationship of

Financial technique(s) | Significant | unobservable
assets/financial Fair value and key unohservable] inputs to fair
liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy input{s) input(s) value

31 December| 31 December| 31 December

2016 2015 2014

Derivatives 3,886 - -l Level 2 [Market Value - -
Deposits patd 161,011 130,923 101,211} Level 2 CPl1 - -
Deposits and gurantees
received (Note :6) 880,004 733,201 608,063 Level2 CPI - -
Financial assets 4,293,306 3,021,039 1,782,192 Levei 2 CP1 - -
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2013 2014

Cash on hand - - [14
Cash at banks 55,956 72,748 43,154
Demand deposits 35,950 72,748 43,154
Repurchase agreements 18,614 79,355 69,401
74,570 152.103 112,669

As at 31 December 2016, TL 28,961 of the Group’s demand deposits are blocked at different banks (31
December 2015: TL 24,459, 31 December 2014: TL 22,029). These blocked deposits are related to the
collections made through bank branches which are made available for use by banks 1 or 2 days after the
collection depending on the agreements with related banks.

Repurchase agreements consist of short term TL balances with original maturities between 1-3 days (31
December 2015: 1-3 days, 31 December 2014: 1-3 days). The weighted average effective interest rate of
TL repurchase agreements is 11.80% as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: 11.10%, 31 December
2014: 10.07%).

Details of “Other adjustments to reconcile profit / (floss)” that presented on cash flow statement as follows:

1 January 1 January 1 January
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
Adjustments related to finance (income) / cost based on
revenue cap regulation (19.370) (2,496) (5,313)
Adjustments related to investment revenue recognised
relate to service concession arrangements (609,628) (310,955) (208,758)
Adjustments related to fair value differences arising
from deposits 40,287 36,118 42,627
{588,711) (277,333} (171,444

Details of “Other cash in-flows generated from operating activities”™ that presented on cash flow statement
as follows:

1 January 1 January 1 January
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014

Net collections from financial assets related
to service concession arrangements 851,546 399,063 349,994
851,546 399,063 349,994
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(Amounts are expressed as thousands of Turkish Lira {TL) unless otherwise stated.)
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Details of “Other cash-out flows from investing activities™ that presented on cash flow statement as
follows:

1 January 1 January 1 January

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014

Capital expenditures related to service concession arrangements (1,496,213) (1,051,224) (525,427
Payment to Privatization Administration (1,188,456 (1,225,350) (1,176,074)
(2,684,669 (2,276,574) {1,701,501)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Following the approval of Capital Markets Board with decision numbered 27/1319 on 29 December 2016;
bonds with the nominal amount of TL 405,000 are issued by the Group on 2 March 2017 with 1,454 days
maturity, CPI based variable interests and capital payment at the end of the maturity.

Further to Board of Directors resolution dated 20 April 2017, the Company has merged with its shareholding

company, Enerjisa Enerji A.S. also being the surviving entity. The merger has been registered as of 28 April
2017.
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